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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS financial statements of Oriofe Dr, Fresh Hotels Private Limited {“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the statement of Profit
and Loss, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements, give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
{the “Act”} in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards (“Ind AS") prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, the loss, total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note No., 24 to the iInd AS Financial Statements, which describes the
uncertainties and the impact of Covid-19 pandemic on the Company’s operations and results as
assessed by the management. The actual results may differ from such estimates depending on
future devetopments. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibitities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section
of our report, We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled cur other ethical responsibilities in accordance

with these requirements and the Code of Ethics,
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion,

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responSIblewf@L the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the ap -@a;l ﬂi@%ﬁut does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon?’

T
HES J'H,
Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statem HT(F(I‘{ é[fﬁﬂi t}ey r the other mformatlon and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion tﬁ rg ;f/f
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our respensibitity is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have

nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the IND AS
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") with respect to the preparation of these IND AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principtes generally
accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internat financial controls, that were operating
effactively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a geing concern, disclosing, as applicabte, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
s0. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting

process

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a materfal
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
abtain audit eVIdence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a mater;at'. itement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fr d?\,may ml{ol\gg collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the over?gdé Of 1‘n§ema control.

it
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e Obtain an understanding of internat controf relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. if we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Qur
conclusions are based con the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the undertying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scape and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 {“the Order”}, issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the "Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order, to the extent applicabte

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

{(b) in our opinian, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

ﬂancf‘aL $t@tements comply with the Accounting

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind
A;rﬁad with Companies (Indian Accounting
H H

Standards specified under Section 1f 3
Standards} Rules, 2015, as amended* '

Head Offtce ."Krlshna Raknjan" B 35/5 2"" F!oor Shanendra Nagar Halpur (C. G) TelfFax - 4032292, 2226673




3 606, 6 FLOOR, PP CITY CENTRE
ROAD NO. 44, PITAMPURA
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS DELHI - 110034

TEL.: 011-49058720
E-MAIL : apas.delhi@gmail.com

{£) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

{(f) In view of netification of ministry of corporate affairs dated 13th June 2017, read with
notification no. GSR 464E) dated 5th June 2015, clause (i) of section 143(3} of the
Companies Act in respect of internal financial controls is not applicable to the Company

during the year,

{g} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its Standalene Ind AS financial statements. Refer Note 26 to the financial statements.

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company

For APAS & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm Regn No. 000340C

PLACE : NEW DELHI (RAJEEV RANJAN)

DATED : May 27, 2020 PARTNER
UDIN : 20535395AAAABA3839 M No. 535395
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements” of our report of even date

(i) a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b) The Company has physically verified the fixed assets at reasonable intervals, there
were no material discrepancy during the physical verification of fixed assets.

c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title
deeds of immoveable properties, included in property, plant and equipment are held in
the name of the Company.

(i) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical

verification,

(iii} The Company has not granted any loan to a company covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3{iii)
{a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) We are informed that the company has not granted any loans or provided any
guarantees, or given any security or made any investments requiring compliance with
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act. Accordingly, provisions of
clause 3(iv) are not applicable to the Company.

(v) The Company has not accepled any deposits from the public in terms of directive issued
hy Reserve Bank of India and provision of section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013.

{vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the central government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the

Companies Act 2013,

(vii) As per information and explanations given to us, the company is generally regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities. As informed to us there are no outstanding statutory dues in arrears as at
the last day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from

the date they became payable.

{(viii)  In our opinion and according to information and explanation given by the management,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to Bank. The Company did not
have any outstanding dues in respect of financial institutions and debenture holders

during the year.

{ix} The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer and term loan during the year.

(x) Based upon the audit procedures and information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fra _,‘_,,the Company or on the Company by 1ts
officers or employees has been not ]
audit.

Company during the year. Hence
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The campany is not a Nidhi Company so Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the
company. ‘

{xiii)  All transactions entered during the year with the related party are in compliance with
the provisions of sections 188 where applicable and the details with respect to all
related party transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required
by applicable accounting standards. Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
applicable on the Company,

{xiv)  During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly paid convertible debentures and hence reporting
under clause 3 {xiv} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with the director or persen
connected with director as required under section 192 of The Companies Act, 2013.

(xvi}  The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India, 1934,

For APAS & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Regn No. 000340C

PLACE : NEW DELHI (RAJEEV RANJAN)
DATED : May 27, 2020 PARTNER
UDIN : 20535395AAAABA3839 M No. 535395

oor, Shailendra Nagar, Raipur ( C.G.), Tel/Fax - 4032292, 2226673




Oviole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Balance Shect as at March 3, 2620

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Note
Rs in lalchs Rs in lakhs
ASEETS
MNon-current assets
(a) Propecty, plant and equipment 3 4,254,72 4,336.80
(bY [ntangible assels 4 1.50 2.24
{c) Financiad assels 5
(i) Other non-current financial assets 192.56 191.50
{d) Non-current lax assets (net} 65.00 65.28
4,513.84 4,595.82
Current assets
(a) Invenlories ¢} 8.71 7.94
(h) Financial agsets 7
(i) Trade receivables 77.36 116177
{ii) Cash and Cash equivalents 114.04 175.42
(1ii) Investments 5 - 54,57
{¢ YOther current assets & 06,72 38.50
266,83 407.26
Total Assets 4,780.67 5,003.08
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Tquity
() Fquity Share capital 9 370,00 370.00
(b)Y Other Equity 10 £,886.1¢ 1,963.72
Total Equity 2,256.16 2,335.72
Liabilities
Non-current linbilities
(&) Financial liabilities 11
(i) Borrowings 1,332.07 2,377.65
{i1) Other lnancial fiabilities - 19,20
(1) Long term provisions 12 4.01 3.34
2,336.08 2,400.19
Currend Hahilities
{a} Financial liabilities 13
(i) Trade payahles #5.09 136,07
{ii) Other Current financial liabilities 93.89 97.12
{b) Other current liabilities 14 4.94 28.75
{c} Pravisions 12 4.51 5.23
188,43 267.17
Total Liabilities 2,524.51 2,6607.36
Total Equily and Liahilities 4,780.67 5.003.08
22

Summary of significant accounting, policies
The accompanying noles are an integrat part of the financial

As per our report of cven date

Tor APAS & Co.
Firm Registration No. 600340C
Chartered Accountants

Rajeev Ranjan
PPartner
Membership No. 535395

irgclor

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 27, 2020

107384320

slatements,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Oriole Dr, Fresh Hotels Private Limited

Ja{a Yashpal Rajesh Koy

Direclor
DIN: 05251730




Oriole Dr, Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2620

Note March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Revenue from eperations 15 764.61 879.28
Other income o 28.35 35.02
Total Income 792,96 9i4.30
Expenses
Cost of Tood and beverages consumed 17 64.46 71.29
Employee benefits expense 8 181.41 203.37
Other expenscs 9 320.20 363.76
Total expenscs 566.07 638.42
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 226.89 275.88
amortisation (EBITT}IA)
Finance costs 20 242.43 239.82
Depreciation and amertization expense 21 83.86 95.23
Finance Income 22 (19.85}) (17.06)
Proflit/(luss) hefore tax (79.55) {42.11)
Tax cxpense:
(1Y Current tax - -
{2) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods - (3.53)
Profit/{loss} for the year (79.53) {38.58)
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (0.01) 0.27
Income tax relating Lo items that will not be reclassified -
to profit or foss

(.01) 0.27
Totat Comprehensive Income/Loss for the year (79.56) {(38.31)
Earnings/(loss) per equity share:
(1) Basic 23 {2.15) (1.04)
{2) Diluted 23 (2.15) (1.04)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2

The accempanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Qriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited

K‘M\ e

o
Rajesfﬁ( umar
Dircctor
DIN; 05251730

For APAS & Co.
Firm Registration No. 000340C

Chartered Accountunts

Rujeev Ranjan
Partmer
Membership No. 535395 DIN: 07184326

Piace : New Delhi
Date : May 27, 2020




Oriole Dy, Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended March 31,2024

A. Equity Share Capital

Kquity shares ol INR 10 cach issued, subseribed and
tully pakd

At Aprit 1, 2018

lssue ol share capital

At vlarch 31, 2019

Issue ol share capital

Al dEarch 31,2020

B. Other Equity

No. of shares Amount
(Rs in lakhs)
3,700,000 370,60
3,700,000 376,00
3,704,000 370.00

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Ry in dalhs

Reserves aid Surplus
Capital reserve Securities Premium Retained Barnings Other equity

Balance at April 1, 2018 153.10 227395 (423.02) 2,004,043
Total Comprehensive Income fur the year - - (38.31) (38.31)
Bakance at March 31,2019 153.10 227395 (461.33) 1,965.72
Tolal Compreliensive lncome for (he year - - (79.58) (79.56)
Balance at March 31, 2020 153.10 2,273.95 (540.89) 1,886,106

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the [tnancial statements.
As per our report of even date
For APAS & Co,

Fitm Registration No, 000340C
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited

\.

S
mnsr

Rajeev Ranjan
Pariner
Membership No. 535393

Place 1 New Delhi
Dale ; May 27, 2020

Reffest K
Director
DIN: 05251730




Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Cash Mow statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

For the period ended For the year ended
Narch 31, 2024 March 31,2019
(Rs in fakhs) {Rs in lakhs)
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/(loss) helore tax (79.55) (42.11)
Non-cash adjustments to reconeile profit/(loss) hefore 1ax 1o net caslh fTows:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses #3.80 95.23
Finance income (including fair value change in financial instrunients) (15.16) (12.89)
Finance costs {inciuding fair value change in financial instruments) 238.83 235.61
Provision for gratuity 0.47 .28
Provision for leave encashiment (0,93} 1.26
'rovision for doubstiut debts 0.58 .53
Operating profit befere working capital changes: 228.50 277191
Movements in working capital:
Change in trade receivables 3282 31.97
Change in loans and advances and other current asscis {9.22) (40.07)
Change in invenlories (0,77 {0.93)
Change in Babilities and provisions (90.95) 88.33
Cash Generated trom Operations 160,38 357.21
Direet taxes paid (net of refunds) 0,22 (23.22)
Net cush ftow from operating activities (A) 160.60 31399
B.  Cash flows from investing activitics
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment (1.04) (13.60)
{Purchasc)/sale of current investments 54,57 (4.17
Interest received 1514 12.89
Net Cash lows from investing activities (B) G8.69 (4.88)
¢ Cash ffows (rom/used in) financing activities

Repayment of long term borrowings {51.83) (23.5%)
Interest paid (238.83) (235.61)
Net Cash fromf(used in) financing activities (C) (290.66) (259.20)
Net increase/(decrease) in eash and cash equivalents (A + B+C) (61.37) 6991
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ol the year 175.42 105.51

114,05 175.42

Cash and cash equivalents af the end of the year

Components of eash ad cash equivalents

Cash on Hand 1405 1.44
Balances with Scheduled Banks in

- {urrent accounts 112,99 173.98
Total cash and cash equivalents 114404 175.42

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.2

The accompanying noles are an integral part ol the tinancial stalerments,

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board af Directors of

Oriole Dr. Freslt Hotels Private Lintited

r F g L& P
: \l}h a l[/);’y/ . Rﬂjexh"lﬁf;mu'
IeELpr : ' Dircelor

07384320 DIN: 05251730

For APAS & Co.
Firm Registration No, 000340C
Charlered Accountands

Rajeey Ranjan
Partner
Membership No, 5353935

Place : New Delhi
Date ; May 27, 2020




Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limifted

Notes to finan

cial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

1.

2.1

2.2

(a)

Corporate Information

Oiole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited (the Company}) is a private company domiciled in
India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companics Act applicable in india. The
registered office of the company is located at Asset No. 6, Aerocity Hospitality District, New

Delhi 10037,

activities of the Company is fo cary out business of developing, owning,

The principal
s, resorts, restaurants, etc. under the brand

acquiring, renovating and promoting hotels, motel
name of Red Fox Hotel.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of directors on May 27, 2020,

Basis of preparation of financial statements and Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation and Compliance with Ind AS

These financial slatements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind
AS), and the provisions of the Companies Act ,2013 (‘the Act") (to the extent notified). The
[nd AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule3 of the Companics (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost

convention and on an accrual method of accounting, except for certain financial assets and

liabilities which are measured at fair value/ amortised cost (refer note 35}

have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting

Accounting policies
sting account standard required a change to

standard is initially adopted or a revision to an exi
the accounting policy hitherto to in use.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and ail values are rounded fo

the nearest lakhs, expect where otherwise indicated.

Significant accounting policies

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current

classification. An asset is treated as current when it 1s:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

o Held primarily for the purpose of trading

o Expecled to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

o Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability

for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A linbility is current when:

o ltisexpected to be scttled in normal operating cycle

o It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

e It is due to be settled within twetve months after the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve




Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

months after the reporting period
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-cutrent.
Deferrad tax assets and liabilities are classitied as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identitied twelve months as ifs

operating cycle.

€3]] Foreign currencies
lfunctional and presentation currency

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s
functional currency. Presentation currency is the currency in which the company’s financial
statements are presented. Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which an entity operates and is normally the currency in which the enfity
primarily generates and cxpends cash.  All the financial information presented in Indian
Rupees (INR) has been rounded to the nearest of lakhs rupecs, except where otherwise stated.

Transactions and halances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s entities at their
respective functional currency spot rales at the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencics arc translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in

profit or loss

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on franslation of non-monetary
items measured at Tair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or logs on the
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss,

respectively).

{c) Fair value nreasurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement js based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

o In the principal market for the asset or liability, or




Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended Marxch 31, 2020

e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the assel or

liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an assel or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assaming that market participants

act in their cconomic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufticient data ave available 1o measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair valuc is measured or disclosed in the financial

statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the

Jowest tevel input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

o bLevel | — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in aclive markets [or identical assels or
liabilities

o Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inpul that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the Jowest level input that is significant (o the

fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occutred between levels in the hierarchy by

re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowcest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value

measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair

value. External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assetsand liabilities. The
al valuer on various criteria such as market Knowledge, reputation,
al standards are maintained by valuer. The management
ch valuation techniques and

management selects extern
independence and whether profession
decides, after discussion with the Company’s external valuers, whi

inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the valucs of assets and
liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s
accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the

latest valuation by agreeing the information ib the valuation computation to contracts and

other relevant documents.

The management, in copjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the
change in the fair value of each assel and liability with relevant external sources Lo determine

whether the change ig reasonable.

o of Tair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and

For the purpos
sks of the assct or liability and the

liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and ri
level of the fair value hierarchy.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are

given in the refcvant notes.
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e Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 25)
Contingent consideration (note 27)

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 29)

e Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) {nole 29)

&

@

Revenue recognition

FEffective April 1, 2018, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 “Revenuc from Contracts with
Customers” which establishes a comprehensive frameworl to depict timing and amount of
revenue to be recognised. The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using cumulative catch-up
transition method, where any effect arising upon application of this standard is recognised as
at the date of initial application (i.e April I, 2018). The standard is applied only 1o contracts
(hat are not completed as at the date of initial application and the comparative information in
the statement of profit and loss is not restated - i.e. the comparative information continues to
be reported under previous standards on revenue ie. Ind AS 18 and Ind AS 11. Therc was no
impact on adoption of Ind AS 115 to the financial statements of the Company.

In arrangements for room revenue and related services, the Company has applied the guidance
in Ind AS 115 for recognition of Revenue from contract with customer, by applying the
revenue recognition criteria for each distinet performance obligation. The arrangements with
customers generally meet the criteria for considering room revenue and related SeIvices as

ance obligations. For allocating the transaction price, the Company has

distinet perform
ation of a contract at its relative

measured the revenue in respect of cach performance oblig
standalone selfing price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is

the best evidence of its standalone selling price.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be refiably measured, regardless of when the payment is
being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The
Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if' it is acting
as principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its
revenue arrangements. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met
before revenue is recognized.

Sales Tax/ Value Added Tax (VATYGoods and Service Tax{(GST) is not received by the
Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by
the seller on bekalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Rooms, Restaurant, Banquels and Other Services

Income from guest accommodation is recognized on a day to day basis after the guest checks

imto the Hotels and are stated net of allowances. Incomes from other services are recoghized
as and when services are rendered. Sales are stated exclusive of Service Tax, Value Added
Taxes (VAT), Goods and Service Tax(GST)and Luxury Tax. Difference of revenue over the
billed as at the year-end is carried in financial statement as unbilled revenue separately.

Sele of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed Lo the buyer, sale of food and beverage arc recognized at
the points of serving these items fo the guests. Sales are stated exclusive of Sales Tax / VA'T/

Goods and Service Tax (GST).

Inferest income
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For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, inlerest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest
income is included in finance income in the income statement.

Diviclends

Revenue is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which

is gencrally when sharcholders approve the dividend.

Management Fee

Revenue from manageiment services comprises fixed & variable income. Fixed income is
the period of the contract as and when services are rendered.

recognised pro-rata over
an accrual basis in accordance with the ferims of the relevant

Variable income is recognised on
agreement,

Taxes

Tax expense represents Current income tax and Deferred tax.

Current income 1y

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period/ycar. Taxable profit differs

tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of

axable or deductible in other years and items that are never
acted or

from ‘profit before
income or expense that are t
taxable or deductible. The current tax is caleulated using tax rates that have been en

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected o be recovered

from or paid to the taxation autherities.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or foss {either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction cither in OCI or directly in equity,
Managenient periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions

wlhere appropriate,
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and Habilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the

reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilitics are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, excepl:

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liabjlity in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

e In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary

differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductibte temporary differences, the carry forward
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of unused tax credits (including MAT credit) and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
arc recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit witl be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differcnce arises from the

initial recognition of an asset or liability in a fransaction that is not a business combination

and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss
o In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred fax asscts are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
fisture and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be

utilised

The carrying amount of delerred tax assets (including MAT credit available) is reviewed at
cach reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset (o be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred lax assets ave re-assessed at cach reporting date and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable prefits will allow the deferred tax

asset to be recovercd.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and fax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss {either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax iters are recognised in
correlation 1o the underlying transaction cither in OCH or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax Habilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not s
separate recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts
and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement
period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they resull from new information oblained
about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date.

atisfying the criteria for

If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised
in OCI/ capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase gains. All
other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit or loss.

Sales/ Value Added Teaves/Goods& Service Tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring

expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes paid, except:
o When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation autherity, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition

of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable
o When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as
part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.




Ovriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

)

Property, plant and equipment

On transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying vaiue of all
of its property plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the
previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property plant and

equipment,

and cquipment is stated at cost, net

Capital work in progress is stated at cost. Property, Piant
st includes

of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such co
the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. Such properties are classilied to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
¢ ready for their intended use. Freehold land is not depreciated.

commences when the assets ar

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
1em separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a
its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
ition criteria arc satisfied. All other repair and

Company depreciates
major inspection is performed,
equipment as a replacement if the recogn
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an assct after its use is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Deprecintion on fixed assets Is provided as per Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013 on
Straight Line Method over its economic useful tife of fixed assets as follows:

Fixed Assets Uscful life considered

Plant & Machinery 15 Year
Building 60 Years
Electrical equipments and fittings 10 Years
Oftice Equipments 5 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 8§ Years
Crockery, cutlery and soft furnishings 3 Years
Commercial Vehicles 6 Years
Private Vehicles 8 Years

Computers 3 Years

The Company, based on management estimates, depreciates certain items of building, plant
and equipment over estimated useful lives which are lower than the useful life prescribed in
Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, The management believes that these estimated useful
lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the asscts are likely

to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initiaily recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the assef (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal procecds and the carrying amount of the asset) is inciuded in the

income statement when the asset is derecognized.

residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and

The
at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

equipment are reviewed
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Intangible assefs

On transition to IND AS, the Company has clected to continue with the carrying value of ail
of its Intangible assets recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the previous GAAP,
and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such Intangible assets.

are measured on initial recognition ai cosl. The cost of

intangible assets acquived separately
at the date of

intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried al cost less any
accumulated  amortization and  accumulated impairment losses. Internally  generated
intangibles, exchuding capitalised development costs, arc not capitalised and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred,

The uselul lives of intangible assets are assessed as 3 years and the same shall be amortised on
Straight line basis over its useful life.

Gains or losses arising from derccognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the income statement when the assel is derecognized.

Investment propertics

On transition to IND AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying vaiue of all
of its Investment properties recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the previous
GAAP, and use that carrying vafue as the deemed cost of such Investment properties.

fnvestment properties are properties held to eamn rentals and/or for capital appreciation
{including property under construction for such purposes) Investment properties are measured
initially at cost, including (ransaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss,
if any.

The Company depreciates building component of investment property over the remaining
estimated useful life on the date of purchase after considering total economic useful life of 60

years.

Though the Company measures investment property using deemed cost based measurement,
the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined
based on an evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer.

hen they have been disposed of or when they
¢ benefit is expected from their
ing amount of the

Investment properties are derccognised either w

are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economi
disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carry
assel is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR).

attributable to the acquisition or construction of an assct that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use. Where funds arc borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount

Borrowing costs directly
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actual borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds are available
out of money borrowed specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such
curcent investments is deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds
used to finance a project form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated
using a weighted average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings ol the Company
during the year. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to profit and loss
during the extended periods when the active development on the qualifying assets is

capitalised represents the

interrupted.

IR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial liability or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the amortised

cost of a financial liability after considering all the contractual terms of the financial

mstrument.

Inventfories

Stock of food & beverages, stores and operating supplies are valued at lower of cost and net

realisable Vaiue. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a [irst in first oul
basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated cost of completion and estimated costs necessary to make sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there s an indication that an asset may
be impaired. I any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the assel’s recoverable amount, An assel’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair valueless costs of
nd its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or Company of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is writlen down to its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash {lows are discounted to their
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessiments of the time
g net selling price, recent

disposal a

present value using
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determinin
market transactions are taken into account, if available. 1f no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calcutations are corroborated by

valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair

value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forccast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is caleulated and applied to project future cash
flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the
mos! recent budgels/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash tlow projections in the budget
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be
justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the products, industries, or country in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the

assef is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventorics, are

recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine
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whether there is an indication that previousty recognised impairment losses no longer exist or
have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the
last impairment {oss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the
asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have
been detetmined, net of depreciation, had no impairmeat loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the stalement of profit or loss unless the assel is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increasc.

Provisions
General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estilmate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some of all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimburscment is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and joss net of any reimbursement.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required (o
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rale that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specitic to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a

finance cost.

Provisions arc reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an cutflow of resources would be required to

seitle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Contingent Assets/ Liabilities

Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when realisation of income is virtually
certain, then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in notes to accounts when there is a possible obligation
fich will be contirmed only by the oceurrence or

arising from past events, the existence of w
ily within the control of the

non-occurrence of one o more uncertain future events not who
Company ot a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount

cannot be made,

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no obligation, other than the conlribution payabic to the provident fund. The
Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when

ated service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service

an employce renders the rel
the deficil

received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid,




Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

recognized as a lability after deducting the contribution already

payable to the scheme is
ontribution due for services received before

paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the ©
the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment

will lead to, for example, a reduction in future paymentor a cash refund.

Gratuity liability is defincd benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial
valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial ycar.

Retirement benefit in the form of gratuity is a defined benefit scheme, Gratuity liability of
employees is accounted for on the basis of actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method
at the close of the year. Company’s contribution made to Life Insurance Corporation is

expenses off at the time of payment of premium.

Remeasuremenis, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net delined benefit ability and the return
on plan assets (excluding ameunts inctuded in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
arc recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCIL in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

ated by applying the discount rale to the net defined benefit Lability or

Net interest is calcul
ses the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as

asset. The Company recogni
an expense in the consolidated statement of profit and loss:
e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
e Net interest expense or income

Retirement benefits in the form of Superannaation Fund is a defined confribution scheme and

the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year when the
contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the

contribution payable to the respective frusts.
Shori-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits aceruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilitics recognised in respect of shorl-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefils arc measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up fo the reporting date.

treats leaves expected to be carried forward for measurement purposes. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the vear-end. Remeasurement gains/osses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The company presents the entire leave as a
current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
seftlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Company has the unconditional

The company
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legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is

presented as non-current liability.

Financial instruments

A financial instnunent is any contract that gives rise to a financial assct of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initicl recognition and measurenient

All financial asscts are recognised initially at fair value ptus, in the case of financial assets not
vecorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset, Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assels within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company comumils

to purchase or sell the assel.

Subseqguent measurenient

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following

categories:
e Debt instruments at amortised cost
¢ Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCH)

e Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

o [Equity instraments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH)

e Equity instruments in subsidiaries carricd at cost

Debt instiuments af amortised cost

A debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a)  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting

contractual cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding,

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs thal are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment arc
recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivable
ete. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 8.

Debt instrument al FVTOCT

A debt instrument is ctassified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows

and selling the financial assets, and
b) The asset’s contractuaf cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at
cach reporting date at fair value. Fair valuc movements are recognized in the other
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comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes intercst income,
impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or joss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument

is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debit instrumnent af FIVTPL

hich does not meet

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, w
as al FVTPL.

the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified

In addition, the Company may elcet to designate a debt strument, which othenwise mcets

amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such clection is allowed only if

doing so reduces or eliminates a measurenient or recognition inconsistency {referred to as

‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Deht instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all

changes recognized in the P&L.
Fequity instraments

All equity investments (other than equity investments in subsidiaries) in scope of Ind AS (09
are measured at fair value. Equity instruments in subsidiaries are carried af cost in financial
statements less impairments if any. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category
are measuared at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of

similar financial assets) is primaiily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s

consolidated balance sheet) when:

o The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assuned
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a)} the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither

transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit

risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,

debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance
b} Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at F VTOCI
¢) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

o Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
o All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17
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approach does not require the Company to track changes in

The application of simplified
Howance based on liletime ECLs at each

credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss a
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial asscts and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initiai
ognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. 1,
in a subsequent peried, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts fo
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

¢

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
ancial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL

expected life of a fin
er the reporting dale,

which results from default events that are possible within 12 months aft

ECL is the dilference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects 1o receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the
head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial

instruments is described below:

Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.¢., as an integral part of the measurement of
those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Untl the
asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the

gross carrying amount.

Debt instruments measured at FYTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair
value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is

presented as ‘accumulated impairmert amount” in the OCL

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating
an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a

timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial

assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Financial liabilities
Initicd recognition and measuremerit

Financial liabilities are classified, at initiai recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives des gnated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

Al financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and

borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
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The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial gnarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financiaf liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for

financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through

trading and
are incurred for the

profit or loss. Financial Jiabilities are classified as held for trading if they

hasing in the near term. This category alsa includes derivative financial

purpose of repurc
struments in

instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging in
hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109, Separated embedded derivatives are also
classificd as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging insiruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities heid for trading are recognised in the profit or foss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair vaiue gains/ losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequentiy transfetred to

p&1. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All

other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and

loss.
Financial fiahilities af amortised cost

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and botrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabijities are derecognised as well

as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premiun on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as

finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note [2& [4.

Finuncial guaraniee

Financial guarantees issued by the Company on behalf of group companics are designated as
‘Insurance Contracts”. The Company assess at the ead of each reporting period whether its
recognised insurance liabilities (if any) are adequate, using current estimates of future cash
Aows under its insurance contracts. If that assessment shows that ihe carrying amount of

its insurance liabilities is inadequate in the light of the estimated future cash flows, the entire

deficiency is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial liabiity is derecognised when the obtigation under the liability is cischarged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of ap existing lability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecogaition of the original
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{0}

()

(@)

liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective canying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting aof financial insiruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if there is a cwrrently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and therc is an intention to seftle on a net basis, to realise the assets and

settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Redeemable preference shares

Redeemable preference shares are separated into liability and equity components based on the

terms of the contract.

On issuance ol the coavertible preference shares, the fair value of the linbility component is
determined using a markel rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is
classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of trangaction costs) until i is
extinguished on conversion or redemption.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the
convertible preference shares based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity

components whea the instruments are initially recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject fo an

insignificant risk of changes in value.

Measurement of EBITDA

The Company has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss.
The company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In
its measurement, the company does not include depreciation and amortization expense,

interest income, finance costs and tax ¢xpense.
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5

(B

(i)

6

Financial asscis

{nvestments

Unquoted mutoal funds
Nil {previous year 2,066.81 1) units of Reliance Low Duration
Fund-Direet Growth Plan

Agrgregate amount of unquoled investments

Current
Non-Current

Other nou-current financial assets

Security Deposit
Other bank baiances

Deferred fax assets (net)

Properly, plant & equipment
Fair valuztion of current investments

Deferred tax Hahility

Impact of expenditure charged to the stalement of profit and
foss in the current/ earlier period but aliowable for tax
purposes on payment basis

Provigion for doubtiut debts and advances

Elfect of unabsorbed depreciation and business loss

MAT credit entitlement

Provision for graluity

Provision for leave compensation

Deferred tux nssets

Deferred tax assets (net)

As at
March 31, 2020
Rsin lakhs

As al
March 31, 2019
Rs in fakhs

54.57

5457

54.57

54.57

54.57

As al
warch 3§, 2020
Rs in lalths

Asal
March 31, 2019
Ry in lakhs

121 14.21
182.35 181.26
192.50 191.50

Ag at Agal

March 31, 2020
Rs in lakhs

March 31,2019
Rs in lakhs

223.15 243.32
- 1.18
223,15 244.51
274 3.27
1.64 1.34
21151 232.62
5.04 5.04
.40 117
0.82 106
223,15 244.51

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax v

March 31, 2020 and March 31, 201%:

Profit/(loss) before tax

Tax rate

Tax al statutory income tax rate

Effect of incomes taxable at nilflower/MAT rale
Elfect of non-deductible expenses

Income lax charge/ (eredit) in respect of earlier year
MNet

March 31, 2020

ate for period/year

March 31, 2019

{79.55) (42.11)
26.00% 26.00%
(20.68) {10.95}
20.68 10.95
- (3.53)
- (3.53)
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6 Inventories Ay af As al
{valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)} March 31,2020  March 31, 2019
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Food and beverages {exeluding liquor and wine) 3.89 2.73
Stores, cutiery, crockery, linen, provisions and others 4.82 5.21
8.71 7.94

Total
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7 Financial assets

{i) Trade receivables
Trade receivabies

No trade or other receivable are due from dircctors or other oflicers of the company cil
Nor any tiade or other reeeiva
or & member,

(i) Cash and cash cguivalents
Balance with banks

Or current & cash credit agcounts
Cash on land

At Marcl 31, 2020, the Company had available Rs.

Break up of current financisd assets carvied at amortised cost

Trude receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Todul current Hinancial nssets carvied at amortised cost

As af Asgal
March 31,2020 March 31,2019
134 i dakhs Rgin lakhs
77.36 1H).77
77.36 THO.T7

her severally or juintly with any other person,

tle are due from [irms or privale campanics respectively in which any director is a partner, a direclor

As at Asat
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Rs in fakhs Ry in lakhs
112,99 173.98

LS 1.44
11404 175.42

Nil (Viarch 31, 2019; Rs, Nil) of indrawn commiltcd borrowing facitities.

As at Asal
iviarch 31, 2020 Mareh 31, 2019
s in Eakiiy s in fakhs
77.36 110,77
114.04 175,42
191,40 280.19
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8 Other current assets

Advances ether than capital advances
Securily deposits
Security depusits

Others

Advances recoverable in cash or kind

Ratunce will statutory/ government authorities
Interest accrued on deposits with banks
Prepaid Expenses

Fotal

As at Asat
aarch 31,2020 March 31,2019
Rs. 135,

1.43 1.43
19.05 2048
10.00 13,70
24,23 11,60
12.01 2,33
66,72 S8.50




Oriole Dr. Fresh Lutels Private Limited
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v

Equily Share capital

Authorised Shave Capital

At April §, 2008
Increaseifdeerease) during the year
At Nearch 37, 2019
luerensei{decreasey during the year
Al Mareh 34, 2024

Termsirights aftached to equity shares

The company has enly one elass of cquity shares having lace value of Rs. 10 per share. Bach
sy, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to reccive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of

COMmp

the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

1ssued cquity capitnd

fquity shares of INR L caeh issued, subseribed and Tally parid

ALApril |, 2018
Increase/{decreasey during, Ue year
At Nareh 31, 2018
Ilncreasc/(decrease’ during the year
Al Mareh 31, 2020

Shares hedd by halding company

Eepeity shares of Re. 10 eaeh fully paid wp
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

Details of shareholders balding more than 5% shares in the company

Equity shares of Re. HY each fully paid apr
Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

The Company has not issucd Bonus Share, Sharc for consideratio

date.

Equity shares

No, of shares

s in lakhs

3,740,000 37400
3,740,004 374,00
3, 74,000 A74.00

helder of equity sharcs

No. of shares

Rs in lnklis

3,700,000 370,00

3,700,000 A70.00

3,700,000 270.00
As at

March 31, 2020

is entitled (o one vote per share. In the cvent of liquidation ol the
all preferential amounts. The distribution will be fn proportion to

Asat
Narch 3E, 2019

No. of shares

Rs in lakhs

No, of slhares s in Inkhs

3,760,600 27000 3,706,000 370,00
As As af
March 31, 2024 Muarch 31, 2089
Neo, of shares Y el No. of shares Y hetd
HORO0%, 3,700,000 1(0.00%

3,700,000

n other than Cash and has not bought back shares during the periad of five years immediately

preeeding the reporting
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1]

Other ety

Seentities Premintn Reserve Rs in lakhs

At April 1, 2018 2,273.95
increase{deerease) during the year -
Ad Miareh 31, 2009 2,273.95
Increasef{decrease) during the year -
2,273.95

At MEarch 31, 2020

Retuined Earnings Hsin Inkhs

At April 1, 2008 (423.02)
Profitioss) lor the year (38.31)
At March 31, 2019 (461.33)
Profit/(loss) for the year (7.58)
At March 31, 2020 (540.80)
Capital Reserve { Equity Comnponent of Recdemuble Preference shares ) s in Iakhs
At April L, 2008 622,10
Inereasef{deerease) during the year {462.00)
At Mareh 31, 2(H% 153,10
Increasef(decrease) during the year -
155,10

Al Marel 3L, 2024

Asad
NMuarel 31, 2020
s in lukhs

Asal
March 31, 2019
Rs in lakhs

Otlier reserves

Seeuritics Preminm Reserve 227395 227398
Retained Famings [EELR A5 {401.33)
Capital Reserve { Feuity Component of Recdemable Preference shares ) 155,10 153010

1,886,106 1.965.72
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t
)

Financial liabilitics

Borrowings As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2019
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Non-current borrowings
Term Loans
Indian rupec loans from Banks (Secured)
Yes Bank Limited (Refer note 1 below) 2,331.17 2,375.99
Vehicle loans {Refcr note 2 helow) 0.90 1.63
Total non-current horrowings 2,332.07 237705
Current borrowings
Term Loans
Current maturity of long term loans
Yes Bank Limited (Refer note 1 below) 50.04 56.25
Vehicle Toans (Refer nute 2 below) 0,75 0.75
Tolal current horrewings 50,75 57.00
Less: Amount clubbed under “other current financial liabilitics™ (50.75) {57.00)

Net eurrent horrowings

Term loans

I. Rupee Term Joan of Rs. 2,
repayable in 48 structural installments including 12 mont
April'l6), the loan is secured by:

A) First charge on all immoveable assets of the Project (both present and future) owned by the Borrower

BjFirst Charge on all moveable [ixed assets and current assets {both present and futwre) (inctuding Escrow Account
opened with YBL) of the Borrower,

C)Escrow ol all receivables of the Project including security deposits.

D) Unconditional & lrrevocable Corporale Guarantee of Lemon Tree Hotels Limited to remain valid d

500 lakhs from Yes Bank Lid was availed during Financial Year 2016-17, the foan is
hs of moratorium period from the first date of disbursement {

uring (he entire

tenor of YBLTacililies

2) Vehicle Loans from 1TDFC Bank are generally repuyable in 5 years from the date of sanction and are secured by

Hypoteheation of vehicles financed.
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(i) Other financial Hiabilities

Securily deposils

Provisions

Provision for grafuity

Currenl

Non-current

Pravision Tor leave benefits

Current

MNon-current

Total current
Talal non-current

Asal
March 31, 2020
Rs in lakhs

Asal
March 31, 2019
Rs in lakhs

19.20

16.20

As at
March 31, 2020
Rs in [akhs

As at
March 31, 2009
Rs in kikhs

5.38 4.50
5.38 4.50
1.37 [.16
4.01 3.34

As at
March 31, 2020
Rs in lakhs

As al
Mareh 31, 2019
Rs in fakhs

3.14 4.07
3.H4 4.07
3.4 4.07
4.51 5.23
4401 3.34
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i3 Financial Habilitics

(i} Trade payablies

Trade Payables
-Micro and small enterpriscs
-Other than Micro and small enterprises

{(ii) Other Current financial Habilitics
Current maturities of fong-term borrowings
Outstanding dues of other creditors

t4 Other current liabilities

Advance from customers
Stasutory Dues

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

2.22 4,79
82.87 131.27
85.09 136.07
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs in kakhs Rs in lakhs
50.75 57.00
43.14 40,12
93.89 97.12
As at Asal
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
- 3.13
4,94 25.62

4.94 2875
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15 Revenue fram operatinns

!

=

~1

o0

Revenue fronm operations

Sale of praducts nnd services

- Room renfal

- tigod and beverage {excluding liquor and wine}
- Telephone and tetex

- Other Services

Revente frem aperations

Qther income

Emptics and Serap Sale
Rental income
Misceltancous income

Cost of foed and heverages consumed

() Consumption of food & beverages exclucing liquor & wine

Taventory at the beginning of the year
Add; Purchases

Less: Invenlory at the end of the year
Cust of food ang beverage consumed

Employee benelit expense

Salaries, wages and bunus

Cantribulion to provident fund and other funds
Gralnity expense

Leave compensation expenses

Staff welfare expenses

For the year ended
March 31, 2024
Rs in Jakhs

For the year ended
March 31,2019
Rs in lakhs

677.68 758.34
56.36 71.69
.20 0.21
30.37 49.04
764,61 §79.28

For the year ended
March 31, 2020
s in Inklhs

For the year ended
March 31, 2019
Rs in lakhs

B34 022
26.29 3359
LG8 1.20
28.35 35.02

For the yeur ended
Mareh 31, 2020
Ry in lokhs

For the year ended
March 31,2019
Rs in lakhs

273 2.65
65.02 71.38
68.35 703

3.89 273
Od 46 71.29

fror the year ended
March 31, 2020
Rs in lakhs

Jior the year ended
March 31, 2019
Ry in lakhs

ES1,19 176.83
16.29 R.79
1.21 0.98
(0.93%) 1.26
13.65 15.52
18141 203,37
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[9 Other expenses

2

2

b

Consumplion of slores, entlery, erockery, linen, provistons and others
Power and fuel

Linen & unilorm washing and laundry expenscs
Guest tansporiation

Subscription charges

Cable TV expenses

Repair and maintenance

- Buildings

- Phant and machinery

- Ohers

tates and taxes

[nsurance

Communication costs

Printing and stationery

Traveling and conveyance

Advertising and sales promotion

Demand and penalties

Llectronic Distribution

Management & incentive fees

Commission -other than sole selling agent
Seeurity and ¢leaning expenses
Membership and subscriptions

Legal and prolessional focs

Provision for doubtful debt, loans, advances
Payment 1o auditors

Miscellaneous expenses

Payvment to auditor

Ay L e

As auditor

Finance costs

Interest
~an term lpans from banks

- on olbers
Bank charges {including commission on credil card collection)

Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of tangible assets
Amorlization of intangible assets

Finance income

Infecest Income on

-Bunk Deposils

-Others

Profit on sale of investment

Fuir valugtion profit on linancial instruments at fair value thravgh profit or foss

For the year ended
March 31, 2020
Rs in Iakhs

For the year ended
March 31, 2019
Rs in lakhs

16.38 19.72
L1165 126,08
0.62 1.45
24,87 23.23
.48 0,26
2.66 2.05
1.79 2.8
16.93 22,10
324 3.3
15.59 15.03
3.47 2,16
11,68 17.03
2,43 2.91
097 6.69
.74 073
- 0,03
5.22 1.26
A4.45 55.52
26,44 23.64
28.23 25.81
1.03 1.15
9.58 7.86
058 0.53
0.60 0.60
47 1.82
120.20 36370
{.00 (.60
(.60 ),60

FFar the year ended
March 31, 2020
s in lakhs

For the year ended
March 31, 2019
Rs in lakhs

238.64 23535
0.1 0.26
3.60 4.214

242,43 239.82

For the year ended
Murch 31, 2020
Rs in Inkhs

For the ycar ended
March 31, 2019
Rs in lakhs

83.12 9500
.74 023
£3.80 95.23

For the yenr ended
March 31, 2024
s in lalds

For he yeur endad
March 31, 2019
Rs in lakhs

14.03 12.89
1.14 -
4.68
- 4.17

14.85 17.06
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23 Earnings per share (Basic And Diluted)

Rasic EPS amounts are calcutated by dividing the profit for the year attributable 10 equity holders of the Company by the weighted

average number of Equily shares outstanding during the year.
Dituled EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable o equily hot
ity shares cutstanding during the year plus the weighted

ders of the Company {after adjusting Tor interest

on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of E

average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of alt the dilutive potentinl Equity shares into Ceuity shares.

The Tollowing reflects the imeonte and share data used in the basic and dituted EP'S computalions:

For the year ended  For the year coded

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Prefitflass) altributable (o equity halders (For basic and dilwted) {Rs in lakhs) (79.55) (38.58)
Weighted Average Number af Equity Shares (for basic and diluted}* 3,700,000 3,700,000
(215 (1.0

Basic & Diluted EPS

average effect of changes in share Iransactions during the

# The weighted average number of shares takes into account the weighted
between the repurting date and the

year. There have been no other transactions nvolving Equity shares or potential Leuity shares
date of authorisation of these financial stalemeanls.
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25,

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounis of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.

a)

b}

)

d)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Each hotel property is an identifiable asset that generates cash inflows and is independent of the cash
inflows of the other hotel properties, hence identified as cash generating units, The Company assesses the
carrying amount of hotel properties (CGU) to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. Where the carrying amount of CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss (if any) is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

While assessing the recoverable amount, the Company used the discounted cash flow approach including
various significant estimates and assumptions such as forecast of future revenue, operating margins,
growth rate and selection of the discount rates. The key assumptions used for the calculations are as
follows: '

Particulars As at March 31, 2020
Discount Rate (pre tax rate of WACC) 12.50%
Long Term Growth Rate 5.50%

As at March 31, 2020, the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded its carrying amount and the
change in estimated future economic conditions on account of possible effects relating to COVID-19 is
unlikely to cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount of the CGU.

Loss Allowance on trade receivables

An impairment analysis of trade receivables is performed at each reporting period based on the Company’s
history of collections, customer’s creditworthiness, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates. In calculating expected credit loss, the Company has also considered the likelihood of
consequential default considering emerging situations due to COVID-19 and has taken into account
estimates of possible effect from the pandemic relating to COVID-19. Basis this assessment, the allowance
for doubtful trade receivables as at March 31, 2020 is considered adequate.

Taxes

Deferted tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

The Company has considered possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID 19
and has made detailed assessment of its going concern assumption, liquidity position for next one year and
believes that they can meet all their obligations with the support of the parent company. Also, the parent
Company confirms that they provided unconditional and irrevocable financial support by way of
continuous investment in the Company in the form of equity investment and unsecured loan, as and when
required. In view of the above, these accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis,




Oriele Dr, Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

25,

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could resuit in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.

a)

b)

¢)

d)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Each hotel property is an identifiable asset that generates cash inflows and is independent of the cash
inflows of the other hotel properties, hence identified as cash generating units. The Company assesses the
carrying amount of hotel properties (CGU) to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. Where the carrying amount of CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss (if any) is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

While assessing the recoverable amount, the Company used the discounted cash flow approach including
various significant estimates and assumptions such as forecast of future revenue, operating margins,
growth rate and selection of the discount rates. The key assumptions used for the caleulations are as
follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2020
Discount Rate (pre tax rate of WACC) 12.50%
Long Term Growth Rate 5.50%

As at March 31, 2020, the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded jts carrying amount and the
change in estimated future economic conditions on account of possible effects relating to COVID-19 is
unlikely to cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount of the CGU.

Loss Allowance on trade receivables

An impairment analysis of trade receivables is performed at each reporting period based on the Company’s
history of collections, customer’s creditworthiness, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates. In calculating expected credit loss, the Company has also considered the likelihood of
consequential default considering emerging situations due to COVID-19 and has taken into account
estimates of possible effect from the pandemic relating to COVID-19. Basis this assessment, the allowance
for doubtful trade receivables as at March 31, 2020 is considered adequate.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

The Company has considered possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID 19
and has made detailed assessment of its going concern assumption, liguidity position for next one year and
believes that they can meet all their obligations with the support of the parent company. Also, the parent
Company confirms that they provided unconditional and irrevocable financial support by way of
continuous investment in the Company in the form of equity investment and unsecured loan, as and when
required. In view of the above, these accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis,
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Ry in lakhs
March 31,2020  March 31, 2019

4.50
4.50

Gratuity ptan

Total

I
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The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act,
1972. Under the act, cmployee who has completed five years of service is entitled Lo specific benefit. The level of
benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary al retirement age. The Company makes
provision of such gratuity asset/ liability in the books of accounts on the basis of actuarial valuation as per the

Projected unit credit method.
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The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assels are as follows:

March 31, March 31,
2020 2019

Unquoted investments:

Assei invested in insurance scheme with the LIC -

Total -

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

March 31, 2020 _March 31, 2019

Discount rate: % Yo
Pension plan 5.60% 6.90%
Future salary increases:

Pension plan 2.00% 5.00%
Life expectation for pensioners at the age of 65: Years Years
Pension plan

Male 60 60
Female ol 60

A quantitative sensitivity analysis [or significant assumption as at March 3 [, 2020 and March 31, 2019 is as shown

below:

India gratuity plan:

varch 31, March 31, March 31, iviarch 31,
2020 2020 2020 2020
Sensitivity Level [% Increase 1% decreasém_ l % in.c-rease- - Rdcmec?a ........ i
Impact on defined benefit - .
obligation 0.16 (0.17) 0.17 (0.17)
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2019 2019 2019 2019
Assumptions Discount rate "~ Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decreasc

Impact on defined benelit
obligation 0.13 (0.14) 0.14 (0.14)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined
benefit obligation as a resulf of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.
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The foliowing payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Duration (Years) For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
1 1.37 120
2 £.04 0.98
3 0.78 0.80
4 0.58 0.62
5 0.44 (.49
Abave 5 [.18 4.62
Total expected payments 5.39 5.71

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at {le end of the reporting period is 4 years (March 31,
2019: 4 years).

E R witmesits and vandiagonied
Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:

At March 31, 2020, the Company had Nil commitments (March 31, 2019: Rs Nil)

Contingent liabilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

March 31, March 31,

2020 2019
(Rs. In Lakhs)| (Rs. In Lakhs)
i. |Counter guarantees issued in respect of guarantees issued by (118.48) (118.40)

campany’s bankers {Nef)

ii. Company filed an arbitration petition (arbitration petition No, 160/2012), against the Delhi Devetopmental
Authority (the “DDA”) seeking quashing of invocation of a bank guarantee amounting to Rs 102.801akhs by DDA,

recovery of Rs 25 lakhs as compensation alleging harassment and mental agony, recovery of Rs 10lakhs towards
cost of proceedings, and interest at the rate of 18% on blocked amount from December 28, 2010 till the date of
return of pay order. This dispute pertains to an agreement for construction of a hotel by the subsidiary in Kondli,
Delhi, entered into with DDA, as a successful bidder in an auction process conducted for this purpose. As per such
agreement the subsidiary was required to provide a bank guarantee of Rs 102.80lakhs as performance security. The
DDA allegedly sought to encash the bank guarantee on December 21, 2011 on grounds of non-performance of
contractual obligations by the subsidiary. Consequently, on March 12, 2012 Qriole sent a notice of commencement
of arbitration to DDA and on May 31, 2012, the subsidiary obtained an injunction (OMP No. 1/2012) from the High
Court of Delhi restraining DDA and Axis Bank Limited from proceeding with the encashment of the bank guaranice

until the completion of the arbitration proceedings. An arbitral tribunal was constituted on September 28, 2012 and
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Oriole filed its statement of c¢laims on November 8, 2012. Evidence concluded on November 30, 2017. Presently,
the proceedings are at the final arguments stage. On March 13, 2020, the learned Arbitrator has directed to file the
written synopsis and further, the matter is likely to be scheduled in due course. The procecdings are in progress and
the management based upon its assessment and expert’s advice believes that any further liability against the

aforesaid demand is improbable to crystallize.

3

5. Helated Paprd aanctings

a) Names of related partics where control exists irrespective of whether transactions have

occurred or not,

Hoiding Company -Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

- Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Fellow subsidiary companies
- Canary Hotels Private Limited

Enterprise in which holding company has significant - Mind Leaders Learning India Private Limited

influence

- Ms. Natasha Yashpal (Whole Time Director till
December 31, 2018) (Directer w.e.f January G,
2019)

- Mr. Paramartha Saikia (Independent Director
upto March 13, 2019)

- Mr. Rajesh Kumar (Director)

Key Management Persennel
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The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered info with related parties for the

relevant financial year.

(Ry in lakhs)
Transactions
with Key
Management
Personnel

- . . . Enterprise in which
I'ransactions with Holding .
Year Ended holding company has
Related Party Company . g \
; ‘ significant influence

Reimbursement of
expenses incurred on
company’s behalf

l,f:m.on Tree Hotels 3] -Mar-20 0.4d B _
Limited

31-Mar-19 042 - -
Loan Taken
L(.:m.nn ree Hotels 31-Mar-20 ) ) )
Limited

31-Mar-19 535.01 - -
Loan {Repaid)
Lf:mpn Tree Hotels 31 -Mar-20 . ) _
Limited

31-Mat-19 60.00
Commaon cost
allocation (Net of
faxes)
[_,f!l]]»()l] Tree Hotels 31-Mae-20 3747 ) }
Limitcd

31-Mar-19 50.45 - -

Training Fee Paid
(Net of taxes)
Mind Leaders Learning )
fndia Private Limited 31-Mar-20

- 307 -

31-Mar-19 - 2.02

Remuneration Paid

Ms. Natasha Yashpal 31-Mar-20 -
31-Mar-19 - -

27.83

Amount Received on
behalf of the party

Lfem‘on Trec Hotels 31-Mar 20 - -
Limited

3f-Maz-19 0.05 -
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Enterprise in which

Transactions
with Key

Transactions with Holding .
Year Ended . § kolding company has
Related Party Company . g . Management
’ significant influence Personnel
Canary Hotels Private 41 Mar-20 ) 0.22 i
Limited ; ) :
31-Mar-19 - - -
Amomtt Paid
Lemen Tree Hotels
Lo -vlar- 35 - -
Linvited 31-Mar-20 0.3
31-Mar-19 - - -
Balances outstanding -
at the year cnd-
{Credity/ Debit
Lemon Tree Heotels -
- -Mar- 37. -
Limited 31-Mar-20 37.61
31-Mar-19 - - -
Mrs. Nalasha Yashpal 31-Mar-20 -
31 -Mar-19 - - 0.16
Mind Leaders Learning )
tndia Private Limited 31-Mar-20 ) 0.64 )
31-Mar-19 - (0.08) -
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29, Fair value Measurement

erview of the significance of financial instruments for the company and provides additional
ils of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition,
which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of

This section gives an ov
information on the balance sheet. Dete
the basis of measurement and the basis on
financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument

a. Financial Assets

Rs in lakhs

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Amortised
Cost

Financial
Assefs
Trade
Receivabies i 77.36 i 11077
Seeurity
Deposits (non- - 10.21 - 10.21
current)
Other bank i 182,35 i 18129
balances
Investments - - 54.57 -
Cash and Cash : 114.04 . 175.42
Equivalents
Total Financial 183.97 54.57 477.69
Assets

b. Financial Liabifities
Ry inlakhs

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

FVTPL Amortised Cost FVTPL Amortised Cost
Borrowings (Non- A 2.332.07 i 2.377.65
current)
Borrawings
(Current) 50.75 57.00
Trade Payables - §5.09 - 136.07
Other Non Current
Financial - - - 19.20
Liabilities
Other Current
Financial - 43.14 - 40.12
Liabilities
Total Financial
Liabilities - 2,511.05 - 2,630.04
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¢. Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assel or paid to transfer a liability m an ordetly tr
between market participanis at the measurement date under current markef conditions.

ansaciion

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on the

ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described as follows:

i) Level |
Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

ii) Level 2
Inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, af
for the asset or liabstity.

her than quoted prices included within Jevel 1

iii} L.evel 3

Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting signilicant modifications to observable related

matkel data or Company’s assumptions about pricing by market participants.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities:

Financial assets and liahilities measured at fair value

March 31, 2020
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

Investment in Mutual Funds -

March 31, 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

54.57 - 54.57

Investment in Mutual Funds

‘The management assessed that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, bank
overdrafls, bank deposits with banks, other current financial assets and liabilities approximate their carying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments,

The fair values of loans, security deposits, borrowings and other financial asscts and liabilities arc considered to be
the same as their fair values, as there is an immaterial change in the lending rates.
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o opnik paliciog

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and
other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversces
the management of these risks. The Company's senior management is supported by a fiancial risk committec that
advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. This financial
risk committee provides assurance to the Company's senior management that the Company's financial visk activities
are governed by appropriate policies and procedure and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in
accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for

managing each risk, which are summarised as below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the faic value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price
risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits and payables/receivables
in foreign currencies.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obiigations with fleating inferest rates. The Company is carrying its
borrowings primarily at variable rate. The Company expects the variable rate to decline, accordingly the Company

is currently carrying its loans at variable interest rates.

Ry in lakhs
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Variable rate borrowings 2,381.17 243225
Fixed rate borrowings 1.65 2.40

Inferest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of
Joans and borrowings affected, after the impact of bedge accounting. Witly all other variables held constant, the
Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Increase/decrease in Effect on profit
basis points before tax
Ry in lakhs

31-March-20
50 12.19
-50 (12.19)
31-March-19
50 11.71
-50 (11.71)

Foreign currency risk
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Foreign curtency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company has no exposure in foreign currency.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily
trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign
exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

(a) ‘I'rade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by cach business location subject to the Company's established policy, procedures
and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed and individual
credit limits are defined in accordance with the assessment both in terms of number ol days and amouat.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individua? basis for major clienls. In addition, a
large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets
disclosed in Note 8 The Company does not hold collateral as security.

Ry in lakhs
March 31, 2019

March 31, 2020

Ageing
Not due - .
0-60 days past due 59.13 60.84
61-120 days past due 14.10 2373
[21-180 days past due 3.31 5.72
180-363 days past due 0.28 8.84
365-730 days past due 0.54 1§.64

more than 730 days

Provision for doubtful debts (including provision for expected credit loss)

Rs in lakhs

Ageing March 31, March 31,
2020 2019
Not due - -
(0-60 days past due (.58 0.53
61-120 days past due - -
121-180 days past due - -
180-365 days past due - -
more than 365 days 3.22 2.69

Reconciliation of provision for

loss)

doubtful debts — Trade receivables (including provision for expected credit




Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Rs in lakhs

Particulars March March
31,2020 31,2019
Provision at beginning 3.22 2.69
Addition during the year 0.58 0.53
Reversal during the year ) - -
Utilised during the year - -
Provision at closing 3.80 3.22

Liquidity risk

The Compaty monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows, TheCompany’s objective
is (0 maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafis, cash credit
facilities and bank loans. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect o refinancing its debt and
conciuded it to be low. The Company has access (o a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturing

within 12 months can be rolied over with existing lenders.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilifies based on contractual

undiscounted payments,
Ry i Jakhs
Less than ,
On demand 3 to 12 months 1 fto 5 years > 5 years lotal
3 months :
Year ended
March 31, 2020
Borrowings - - 50,75 675.90 1,656.17 2382.82
Trade and other payables 85.09 - - - - 85.09
Financial Liabilitics 43.14 - - - - 4314
128.23 - 50.75 675.90 1,656.17 2,511.05
Year ended
March 31, 2019
Borrowings - 12.62 44 38 851.65 [,525.99 2.434.65
Trade and other 136.07 i ) i i 136.07
payables
Financial Liabilites  40.12 - . . - 40.12
176.19 12.62 44.38 851.65 1,525.99 2,610.84

FTY PR S
(IR REEIRLES
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For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all
other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary ebjective of the Company’s capital

management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and
the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital
using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt,
interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents,

March 31,
Mareh 31, 2020 et

2019

Borrowings (Note 11& 13) 2,382.82 2,434.05
Trade payables (Note 13) 85.09 136.07
Less: cash and cash equivalents {Note 7) 114,04 175.42
Net debt 2,353.87 2,395.30
Total capital ( Note [0& 11) 2,256.16 2,335.72
Capital and net debt 4,610.03 4731.02

S].‘%) SIOCI

In order to achiceve this overali objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure
that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure

requirements.

Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call Joans and borrowings. There
have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and horrowing in the current period.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March
31, 2020 and 31 March 2019.

32. Segment Reporting

The Company is into Hoteliering business. The Board of Directors of the Company, which has been identified as
being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Company performance, allocate resources based
on the analysis of the various performance indicator of the Company as a single unit, Therefore there is no
reportable segment for the Company as per the requirements of Ind AS 108 — “Operating Segments™.

Information about geographical areas

The Company has only domestic operations and hence no information required for the Company as per the
requirements of Ind AS 108 - “Operating Segments”,

Information about major customers
No customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenue

33. Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006.
(Rs. Lalkhs)




Oriole Dr. Fresh Hotels Private Limited

Notes fo financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

March March3 ],
| 31, 2020 2019
the principal amount and the interest due thercon remaining unpaid to any 2.22 4.79
| supplier as at the end of cach accounting yeat
the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of  section 16 of the Nil Nil
Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with
the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
“during each accounting year
The amount of intercst due and payable for the period of delay in making Nil Nil
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro Small and
| Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.
(he amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each Nil Nil
accounting year; and
the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the Nit Nil
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium
Enterprise Development Act, 2006
As per our report of even date
For APAS& Co. - . —
Fir:nARe 'Jiqtr'llic{:n No. 0003400 For and on behalt of the Board of Directors of Oriole
Bis e o Dr Fresh Hotels Private Limited

Chartered Accountants
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Rajcev Ranjan a4 Yashpal

Partner Director
Membership No. 535395 DIN:073843206

Place : New Delhi
Date : May 27, 2020

Raj esti Kumar

Director
DIN: 052517306




